
Members and guests are expected to show respect and common courtesy and refrain from using offensive language and behavior. The Board may 

recess or adjourn into Executive Session to consider legal or personnel issues, if necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Tuesday, October 30, 2018 

1:30pm – West Center 
 
 

Directors:  Carol Crothers (President), Donna Coon (Vice-President), Denise Nichols (Secretary), Roger Myers (Treasurer),  
Carol Lambert (Assistant Secretary), Tom Sadowski (Assistant Treasurer), Nina Campfield, Lynne Chalmers,  
Charles Sieck, Tim Stewart, Sandra Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof, Kent Blumenthal (non-voting) 

 

 

  Agenda Topic  Director Exhibit Action 

1.  Call to Order / Quorum Crothers   

2.  Adopt Agenda Crothers X X 

3.  Consent Calendar 

1. Minutes: Board of Directors Meeting September 25, 2018 

2. Financial Statements: August 2018 

3. Financial Statements: September 2018 

 
Crothers 

 
X 

 
X 

4. President Report Crothers   

5. CEO Report Blumenthal   

6. Committee Reports 
A. Fiscal Affairs 

1. FY 2019 Budget 
B. Planning & Evaluation 

1. Pickleball Center Update 
C. Board Affairs 

1. Request for Closed Meetings to be Removed from Calendar 
2. Request to Provide Legal Opinion to Board Affairs for Review 

D. Nominations & Elections 
E. Audit 
F. GVR – GVR Foundation Relationship Ad Hoc 

1. Re-Reconciliation of Shared Resources Between GVR and GVR Foundation 
G. Survey Ad Hoc 

1. Request  for Ad Hoc Committee to Study Accessibility Throughout GVR Campus 
for Members with Physical Limitations 

H. Investments Ad Hoc 

 
Myers 

 
Coon 

 
Vanderhoof 

 
 

Nichols 
Sieck 

Stewart 
 

Thornton 
 
 

Sadowski 

 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

X 
 

X 

 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 
X 
 
 
 

X 
 

X 

7.  New Business 
A. 2019 MAP Grant Application from GVR to GVR Foundation 
B. Resolution Affirming CEO Authority to Assign Staff to GVR Foundation Southern 

Arizona Senior Games; Specify Reporting Requirements  
C. Obtain and Provide to Members a Summary of Legal Opinion Regarding the Scope of 

President of Board of Directors Authority 
D. Request for Details of 2017 and 2018 Legal Fees 

 
Crothers 

Blumenthal 
 

Campfield 
 

Sadowski 

 
X 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
X 
 

X 
X 
 

X 

8. GVR Foundation Report Nisson   

9.  Member Comments    

10. Executive Session (if necessary)    

11.  Adjournment   X 
 



 

1 

 

  A regular meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD OF  
DIRECTORS held Tuesday, September 25, 2018 at West Center, the President being in the 
chair and the Secretary being present. 
 
Directors Present: Carol Crothers (President), Donna Coon (Vice-President), Denise Nichols 
(Secretary), Roger Myers (Treasurer), Carol Lambert (Assistant Secretary), Nina Campfield, Sandra 
Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof, Kent Blumenthal (non-voting) 
 
Directors Present Electronically: Lynne Chalmers, Tom Sadowski (Assistant Treasurer), Charles Sieck 
  
Directors Absent: Tim Stewart 
 
Staff: Cheryl Moose (CFO), David Jund (Facilities Director), George Rushing II (Recreation Director), 
Karen Miars (Administrative Assistant), Kathy Edwards (Program Coordinator), Payton Snider (System 
Administrator), Conal Ward (IT Technician), Miles Waterbury (Communications Specialist) 
 
Visitors: 39 (plus additional staff) 
 

I. Call to Order / Establish Quorum  

President Crothers called the meeting to order at 1:30pm MST 
Roll call by Vice President Coon; Quorum established. 

 

II. Adopt Agenda 

MOTION: Campfield / Seconded. Amend the Agenda to include a recommendation to 
have a summary of the legal opinion regarding GVR President Authority made public 
and to include it in the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM). 
Failed: 5 yes (Campfield, Coon, Lambert, Myers, Nichols) / 6 no  

 

III. Consent Calendar 

MOTION: Lambert / Seconded. Approve August 28, 2018 Meeting Minutes as 
amended. 
Passed: unanimous 

 

IV. President Report 

Good afternoon, 
 
As I’ve said several times, most of our board policy activities flow through our committees. 
 
After months of going back and forth with our WSM consultants and finally getting county 
approval, our Planning & Evaluation Committee has approved going ahead with additional lights 
for Pickleball, improving three courts and adding an 8th court at East Center.  Fiscal Affairs 
committee held a special session to find and approve the money for the project.  It will cost over 
$188K, and with board approval this afternoon, will be done as quickly as possible.  We are still 
waiting on WSM to get design and cost figures for the new pickleball complex. 
 
Our Board Affairs Committee has been working on updating the CPM so that it is in compliance 
with our bylaws and state and federal statutes.  At our last board meeting, a legal review of their 
recommendations was requested.  Two of the remaining 4 recommendations are fine.  The one on 
Life Care Members and guest cards was once again questioned by our attorney.  BAC had 



 

2 

 

attempted to bring this into compliance with a recommendation at our June meeting, but was 
asked by our CEO and board to make changes.  Now with the 2nd legal opinion on this, I believe we 
must comply with our bylaws.  If it is the right thing to do, we can change our bylaws, but that will 
have to go to a vote of the membership. 
 
Fiscal Affairs:  it is budget time and the fiscal affairs committee is working with the administration 
to be sure we have a fair and equitable budget.  Our expenses have climbed significantly since 2014.  
With the positive upswing in the housing market we have consistently received more revenue than 
budgeted for housing turnover.  We now have very healthy sized reserves.  In the same period, our 
dues have increased faster than Social Security cost of living increases and based on our survey, 
many of our members are living on limited incomes.  At the board’s direction, Fiscal Affairs is 
looking at the possibility of giving some relief to our membership by keeping dues flat.  I encourage 
our member to make your views know to the FAC and to the board. 
 
Nominations and Elections Committee asked me to note that elections will be coming up before we 
know it and we need good candidates to run for the board.  So, if you are interested in supporting 
your membership and willing to put in a considerable amount of time, I urge you to consider 
running for the board. 
 
Our other committees, Investments, and the ad hoc survey, foundation and bylaws committees 
have also been hard at work.  I will ask each of them to give you a brief update later in the meeting. 
  
Before I turn it over to Kent, I’d like to respond to Director Campfield’s concern that the board or 
our members may not understand the role of the board president.  The board president is one of 12 
voting members of the board and his or her vote has no more power than any of the other 11.  The 
president is elected into office by the board and can be removed from office by the board. The 
specific responsibilities of the president are listed in the governing documents and include setting 
up meeting agendas, running the board meetings, and being a focal point for questions directed to 
the administration or to legal.   
 
Assuming the recommendation to establish FAQ’s (frequently asked questions) passes later in the 
meeting, this kind of question can be answered and posted so we don’t have to spend board time 
with requests like this. 
 

V. CEO Report 

Good afternoon. 
 

There’s been a lot of operational activity lately, but not necessarily a lot of results since our last 
Board meeting as of today, on the path to an ‘Envisioned Future’ for GVR. 

 
By comparison, the August 28 meeting was chock-full: 

 A comprehensive Work Plan for this governance year that expires in just six months was 
adopted. Three work plan activities identified in August are still require further refinement 
by me and the Board Officers.  Now that several Director Snowbirds are headed back to 
Green Valley, I’m confident that this will be soon accomplished. 

 The GVR and GVR Foundation Ad Hoc Committee continues to meet. A Member Forum 
about the relationship was pushed to two (2) meetings, one in October and the other in 
November. 

  



 

3 

 

 The Fiscal Affairs Committee will revisit the proposed FY 2019 budget before it comes to the 
Board, possibly on October 30 at the next Board meeting.  
According to our Bylaws, the schedule of dues and the operating and capital budget must be 
approved by the Board no later than December 10. In real terms, December 10 is much too 
late to be fair to our members.  When a budget is approved this close to the start of the new 
the fiscal year,  staff will necessarily send out dues invoices late, since the notices cannot be 
sent until the annual dues amount is set. Also, according to our governing documents, 
annual dues must be paid by January 1. We’re already getting requests from members to 
send out 2019 invoices, as many are travelling or won’t be arriving in Green Valley until 
January. Perhaps the Board should consider proposing amending GVR Bylaws with earlier 
dates required to approve an annual operating and capital budget. 

 
FY2019 budget-related review meetings include: 

 A Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) review of proposed FY 2019 fees occurred on August 30;  

 The September 18 regular FAC committee meeting focused on non-reserve capital projects.  

 A September 20 Board work session examined the entire FY 2019 budget proposal.  

 More meetings and review sessions are planned. 
 

It is clear that the GVR budget development process and all that must be considered as part of our 
$11M+ budget is not universally understood. I remain hopeful that the Fiscal Affairs Committee 
and staff can soon host a ‘GVR budget primer’ to describe the budget development process to 
members and answer questions about GVR budget. 

 
Last Sunday’s Arizona Daily Star newspaper had a lead Business Section story about the shortage of 
construction contractors and skilled labor in Tucson and the surrounding area. At last week’s Fiscal 
Affairs Meeting, staff shared this as a problem that GVR currently faces. A shortage of available 
contractors has negatively impacted our ability to complete both Maintenance, Repair, 
Replacement (MRR) Reserve-funded projects and Non-reserve funded capital projects in a timely 
manner.   
Meanwhile: 
1. The first three GVR Solar Panel installation projects were approved by the Green Valley Council’s 

(GVC) Transportation and Architectural Committee on September 13. 
2. Two lightly-attended Member Forums were conducted at CPI and Abrego South on September 

18 where a few trees will have to be removed to accommodate Solar Panel installations.  
3. The new GVR SOS Volunteer initiative was launched just after Labor Day, but member 

participation so far has been disappointing. Staff will reevaluate the program after the initial 
series of SOS presentations and lectures is completed. 

 
Thank you for being here today. Let’s have a productive and success-driven afternoon. 

 

VI. Committee Reports 

1. Planning & Evaluation 

MOTION: Coon / Seconded. Recommend to proceed with $98,270 supplemental 
funding for East Center Pickleball Courts’ safety and improvements as described 
within the exhibit.  
Passed: unanimous       

 

2. Fiscal Affairs 

A. MOTION: Myers / Seconded. Accept the Fiscal Affairs Committee 
recommendation of Reserves funding sources and amounts for the Planning 
and Evaluation Committee’s revised East Center Pickleball Courts and Lighting 
Project supplemental funding of $98,270 dated 9/18/2018:     
      



 

4 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 1 – Reserve Study line items: 
Center 00030-East Center 

  FFB 

Category 17000-Tennis Courts  Line 700-Pickleball wind screen 1,000 
Category 17500-Basketball/Sport 
Courts  Line 210-Seal & Striping Pickleball 3,105 
Category 17500-Basketball/Sport 
Courts 

Line 430-Overlay [3] Pickleball 
Courts 8,929 

Category 19000-Fencing 
Line 130-Chain link 10’, Pickleball 
portion 3,857 

  16,891 
Passed: unanimous 

 

B. MOTION: Myers / Seconded. Post on the GVR website the “draft” August 
Financial Statements that are pending Fiscal Affairs Committee approval.  
Passed: unanimous  
 

3. Board Affairs 

MOTION: Chalmers / Seconded. Based on the attorney’s review and approval of 
Exhibit C on Dues Assessments and Exhibit D Code of Conduct, I move approval of 
these two exhibits as they were proposed and presented by the Board Affairs 
Committee at the August 28 Board meeting.   
 
SECOND MOTION: Campfield / Seconded. Table the Motion to go into Executive 
Session immediately following the Board meeting to discuss legal opinion on 
Board Affairs Committee’s proposed Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) 
recommendations. 
Failed: 5 yes (Campfield, Coon, Lambert, Myers, Nichols) / 6 no  
 
Call the question: Vanderhoof / Seconded. 
Passed: 6 yes / 3 no (Campfield, Lambert, Myers) 
 
CEO Blumenthal asked that the meeting minutes reflect his concern that Attorney-Client 
Privileged Legal Opinions were being discussed in an open meeting. He strongly urged the 
Board to go into an Executive Session to discuss legal matters, as is appropriate. 
 
Passed: 7 yes / 4 no (Campfield, Coon, Lambert, Myers) 
 
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Going forward, the Board Affairs Committee will 
interact on appropriate issues with legal counsel to address changes to the 
Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) in a timely fashion, pending approval of the CEO.  
Passed: unanimous 

  

Maintenance, Repair and Replace Reserve1 $  16,891 
Initiatives Reserve $  66,379 
Emergency Reserve $  15,000 
Total $  98,270 



 

5 

 

4. Survey Ad Hoc  

A. MOTION: Lambert / Seconded. Secure a legal opinion on a range of 
appropriate sanctions for Directors who violate the Board Code of Conduct, 
consistent with GVR Bylaws and Arizona statutes. 
Failed: 3 yes (Campfield, Coon, Lambert) / 8 no   

 

B. MOTION: Lambert / Seconded. Form an FAQ Ad Hoc Committee, chaired by the 
Board Secretary. The purpose of the FAQ Ad Hoc Committee is to prioritize, 
answer and publish responses to questions asked by members about GVR and 
its governance.  
Passed: unanimous 

 

5. GVR-GVR Foundation Relationship Ad Hoc - Director Sieck gave an update on the 
committee’s progress.  

 

6. Nominations & Elections - Chair Denise Nichols reported on the upcoming 2019 election 
with four, three-year term positions open. 

 

7. Investments Ad Hoc - Chair Tom Sadowski reported on GVR Reserve accounts. 
 

8. Bylaws Ad Hoc – Chair Lynne Chalmers announced committee members; the committee held 
two meetings. 

 

9. Audit – Chair Charles Sieck reported on recent activities of the committee. 
 

VII. New Business 

1. MOTION: Blumenthal / Seconded. Refer the attorney’s rewrite of the Corporate 
Policy Manual (CPM) section related to electioneering on GVR property to Board 
Affairs Committee to “rip and replace” the incorrect section within the CPM with 
the attorney-provided language.  
Passed: unanimous 
     

2. MOTION: Blumenthal / Seconded. Move that the Board of Directors affirm that it 
desires “draft” Board meeting minutes, not yet approved, be posted for public 
viewing prior to formal Board of Directors’ meeting approval. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

VIII. Member Comments: 2   

 

IX. Adjournment 

MOTION: Sadowski / Seconded. Adjourn meeting at 4:10pm MST.  
Passed: unanimous 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
              
Denise Nichols Date Karen Miars Date 
Secretary  Administrative Assistant 





































EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
October 30, 2018 

 
Calendar Postings for Closed Committee Meetings 

 

 

Overview: GVR Bylaws Article VIII – Committees of the Board of Directors; 

Section 5: Open Meetings; Committee meetings, subcommittee meetings and 

working session meetings are closed or open meetings at the discretion of each 

such Committee. 

 

Recommendation: The Board of Directors determine whether meetings closed at 

the discretion of the Committee may be omitted from the GVR Calendar of Events. 



TO: Board of Directors
Green Valley Recreation, Inc.
1070 S Calle de las Casitas
Green Valley, AZ 85614

RE:
Re-Reconciliation of Shared Resources between Green Valley Recreation, 
Inc.  and GVR Foundation

The following report is a re-reconciliation of the Shared Resources Report previously 
provided to and accepted by the GVR Board on March 27, 2018.  The re-reconciliation 
report was prepared by Accounting Manager, David Webster, with assistance of CFO 
Cheryl Moose.

The re-reconciliation schedule provides detailed information and recalculates costs relating 
to shared services between GVR, Inc. and GVR Foundation as authorized by the Resource 
Sharing Agreement (RSA). These resulting calculations revise the amount owed to GVR by 
GVR Foundation from the original calculation of $200.00 to a net amount of $740.00.

The re-reconciliation includes detailed budget data on the 2018 Senior Games and the 
2018 SoAz CultureFest (jointly hosted by GVR Foundation and the Greater Green Valley 
Community Foundation).  This budget detail was not included in the original March 27, 2018 
shared Resources report.

Kent J. Blumenthal, Ph.D., CAE
Chief Executive Officer

October 18, 2018



Description of Services Rendered by GVR to the Foundation Cost Total

Communication Specialist support July-August 2017 @25% FTE
2,190$            

Communication Specialist ongoing support
788$               

Administrative Support (staff wages)
4,628$            

Information Technology (IT) staff
5,350$            

Accounting Services Staff (weekly bookkeeping, monthly financial stmts.)
3,123$            

Annual Audit Expenses (paid directly)
Paid $300 directly to CPA by GVRF for Audit and Tax Return 990EZ -$                

Administrative Support staff office space required for GVRF

511$               

GVR Meeting Space provided to GVR Foundation -$                
All Members of GVR are provided meeting facilities for free

Insurance Expense
Director & Officers coverage issued through GVR policy for cost savings 600$               

Sub-Total (direct costs paid by GVR) 17,190$    

Initial RetireArizona.org website development.  $24.88 hourly rate with fringes 
for 2 hours per day for 2 months (Jul-Aug 2017)

Posting GVRF information in GVR Now! , eBlasts.  $27.99 hourly rate with 
fringes for 1/2 hour per day for 13 months (excluding Jul-Aug 2017)

Meeting agendas; minutes; donor letters, etc.  $25.89 hourly rate with fringes 
for 2.75 hours per day for 15 months (Jan 2017 - Mar 2018)

GVR IT staff actual time charged to RetireAZ.com through March 31, 2018 
equaling 25.8% of FTE and funded through Freeport-McMoRan Grants

Reconciliation of Shared Resources between Green Valley Recreation and Green Valley Foundation
Green Valley Recreation, Inc. (GVR) and GVR Foundation (GVRF)

Activities January 2017 through March 2018 (15 months)

Bookkeeping services and monthly financial statements.  $25.05 hourly rate 
with fringes for 1.5 hours per week for 15 months (Jan 2017 - Mar 2018)

Administrative physical office cost for 91 sq. ft. cost at $13.07 per sq. ft. per 
year for 2.75 hours  per day for 15 months

REVISED Page 2



Reconciliation of Shared Resources between Green Valley Recreation and Green Valley Foundation
Green Valley Recreation, Inc. (GVR) and GVR Foundation (GVRF)

Activities January 2017 through March 2018 (15 months)

Description of Services Rendered by GVR Foundation to GVR

RetireArizona.org
Category Sponsorship - 15 months Jan. 1, 2018 through Mar. 31, 2019 (3,600)$          

Information Technology
Payments by GVRF to GVR for IT staff services for RetireAZ.com (5,350)$          

SoAz CultureFest 2017 and 2018

(6,000)$          

Senior Games 2018
Presenting Sponsorship (1,500)$          

Sub-Total (direct costs paid by GVR) (16,450)$  

Reconciliation Total (GVR Foundation reimbursement to GVR) 740$         

(3,301)$          page 6

5,749$            page 9

19,967$         

GVR, with the authorization of the GVR Board of Directors allocates staff for the effort of planning, promoting 
and executing the Senior Games.  The combined GVR and GVR Foundation cost which include administrative 
staff efforts net of revenues generated by this project is as follows:

GVR, with the approval of the GVR Board of Directors the GVR Foundation jointly hosts the Southern Arizona 
CultureFest with the Greater Green Valley Community Foundation as a joint fundraiser.  The GVR 
Administrative costs to support this program are estimated to be $5,549.  The Direct Revenue less Direct 
Expenses for the GVR Foundation for the 2018 CultureFest is as follows:

GVR sponsors the annual Member Assistance Program (MAP) to assist members in financial need. According 
to protocol established through the GVR/GVR Foundation-approved Resource Sharing Agreement, GVR will 
request a grant annually from the GVR Foundation for MAP. GVR staff involved in facilitating the MAP 
program include Accounting Department staff (CFO, Accounting Manager, A/P, A/R); Communications 
Specialist; Marketing Assistant; Accounting/Membership Coordinators; Administrative Assistant; IT 
Specialist..  The total MAP awards issued for 2018 is as follows:

Presenting Sponsorship ($5,000 per yr. less $2,000 per yr. maintenance and 
custodial staff facility support)

REVISED Page 3



COMMUNICATION SPECIALIST
Hourly loaded rate 24.88$                        
hours per day 2.0
2 month total 2,189.70$                   

COMMUNICATION SPECIALIST ONGOING
Hourly loaded rate 27.99$                        
hours per week 0.5
13 month total 788.48$                      

ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT
Hourly loaded rate 25.89$                        
hours per week 2.75
15 month total 4,628.07$                   

ACCOUNTING SERVICES
Hourly loaded rate 32.04$                        
hours per week 1.5
15 month total 3,123.48$                   

Fringe Rate Applied 29.4%

Labor Expenses:

Labor Services Rendered by GVR to the Foundation

LABOR Page 4



ADMIN
Payroll 11/16/2017 72.53$            

Payroll 11/30/2017 108.79$          

Payroll 12/14/2017 543.94$          

Payroll 12/28/2017 580.20$          

4th Quarter 2017 12/31/2017 1,305.46$      

1st Quarter 2018 3/31/2018 2,824.67$      

TOTAL WAGES 4,130.13$      

FRINGE 1,213.92$      

OVERTIME 5.50$              

TOTAL COST 5,349.55$    

25.8% FTE

Information Technology 
Wages for RetireAZ.com 

NOVEMBER 2017 - MARCH 2018

AVERAGE PERCENTAGE OF IT TIME 
CHARGED TO RetireAZ.com

IT EXPENSES Page 5



2018 Senior 
Games

6,300.00             
27,348.14           
3,892.00             

Sr. Games Donation Generated by GVR Foundation 2,750.00             
40,290.14

1,421.89
10,329.08

359.86
8,562.64

877.50
77.40
40.50

183.83
21,852.70

18,437.44

Indirect Expenses

GVR Staff Supervision & Coordination:
Hours 568            
Rate 27.24$       
Staff Wages 15,470.97$  
Staff Fringes 4,547.19$    

GVR Custodial Staff:
Hours 94              
Average Rate 14.14$       
Custodial Wages 1,329.16$    
Staff Fringes 390.66$       

Total Indirect Expenses 21,737.98$         

Net Senior Games Revenue Less Expenses (3,300.54)$          

Volunteers:

Total Number of 
Volunteers 585

Hours - Community Volunteers 1,000           

Pickleball Volunteer Hours 1,104           

Grand Total Volunteer hours 2,104           

Rate* 24.69$         
Value of Volunteer Time 51,947.76$         

* Volunteer Rate based on 
Independent Sector report 
published Rate, April 11, 2018

Contracts

GVR Foundation
Statement of Revenue and Expense
Year-to-Date: 5/1/2017 - 4/30/2018

SENIOR GAMES

Sr Games Event Registration
Sr Games Sponsorship

Revenue

Sr Games T Shirts

Total Revenue

Expenses

Office Supplies
Total Expenses

Revenue Less Direct Expenses

Event Supplies
Credit Card Fees
Professional Fees
Food & Catering
United States Postal Service
Printing

SR GAMES Page 6



Staff Supervisor / Coordinator
Month Days Hours Per Day Total Hours

October 20 4 80                 
November 19 4 76                 
December 20 4 80                 
January 20 4 80                 
February 19 4 76                 
March 22 8 176              

TOTAL SUPERVISORY HOURS 568              

Custodial and Landscaping Staff:

Total Hours per time log maintained by Karen Rans

TOTAL CUSTODIAL HOURS 94                 

Volunteer Summary:

TOTAL VOLUNTEER HOURS 2,104           

NUMBER OF COMMUNITY VOLUNTEERS 309              

PICKLEBALL VOLUNTEERS 276             

GRAND TOTAL NUMBER OF VOLUNTEERS 585              

Senior Games - 2018

Hours Worked

SR GAMES HOURS Page 7



Post Date Journal Name Memo Debit Total

1/18/2018 APIN Ajax Barricades Signs for Bike events SASG 79.58 79.58
3/31/2018 APIN MARCH Petty Cash March Petty Cash Senior Games
3/1/2018 APIN PROEM Party And Even Rentals Sr Games tent, toilet, hand washing station rental 1,342.31 1,342.31

2/8/2018 APIN 4imprint, Inc. SASG Grab Bags 260.77 260.77
2/8/2018 APIN 41135 Starbuck Design SASG Sponsor Banners 373.58 0.00 373.58
2/12/2018 APIN Starbuck Design Sr. Games shirts deposit 3,600.00 3,600.00
2/12/2018 APIN COSTCO Sr Games Supplies 13.50 13.50
2/13/2018 APIN 4imprint, Inc. 1,000 GRAB BAGS 104566-129-W 260.77 260.77
2/22/2018 APIN Petty Cash-Cheryl Moose PCASH GVRF FEB 2018 BARRICADES 91.65 91.65
2/22/2018 APIN Petty Cash-Cheryl Moose PCASH GVRF FEB 2018 EVENT SUPPLIES 80.59 80.59
3/1/2018 APIN Rans, Karen Sr Games - snacks, juice, coffee - COSTCO 120.88 120.88
3/1/2018 APIN Starbuck Design Senior Games participant shirts 3,575.07 3,575.07
3/2/2018 GLGJ Petty Cash GVRF PCash K Rans batteries  Sr. Games 61.92 61.92
3/2/2018 GLGJ Petty Cash GVRF PCash K Rans batteries Sr. Games 7.95 7.95
3/2/2018 GLGJ Petty Cash GVRF PCash K Rans pump needles Sr. Games 2.42 2.42
3/2/2018 GLGJ Petty Cash GVRF PCash K Rans Volleyball Sr. Games 40.30 40.30
3/2/2018 GLGJ Petty Cash GVRF PCash K Rans Volleyballs Sr Games 32.41 32.41
3/5/2018 APIN GVR Pickleball Club Senior Games Pickleball Tournament 133.58 133.58
3/13/2018 APIN 2038 Pickleball Station, Inc. Tournament Mgt. System Usage and Support for 972.00 0.00 972.00
3/5/2018 APIN Taylor, Mike Equipment for Sr. Games bicycling event 231.04 231.04
3/14/2018 GLGJ SR Uhaul USA Flooring Uhaul USA Flooring 383.21 0.00 383.21
3/15/2018 GLGJ SR Zoro Tools Sr games supplies 182.11 0.00 182.11
3/19/2018 APIN Gomez, Joyce A. Senor Games Lifeguard Fee 100.00 100.00
3/31/2018 APIN MARCH Petty Cash March Petty Cash Senior Games 66.10 0.00 66.10
3/30/2018 GLGJ Deposit 4 Imprint reimbursement 0.00 (260.77)

1/10/2018 GLGJ 002 Paypal Record Paypal fees - SASG 359.86 0.00 359.86

12/31/2017 APIN 198 NUTHOUSE GRAPHICS SASG Catalogue 332.50 332.50
1/4/2018 APIN ARIZONA LITHOGRAPHERS 2018 SASG Registration Book 2,477.68 2,477.68
3/1/2018 APIN GILLIES, JUDY Honorarium for Sr Games swimming event 100.00 100.00
3/31/2018 GLGJ Sr. Games Prepaid Exp from 2017 5,652.46 5,652.46

2/22/2018 APIN Petty Cash-Cheryl Moose PCASH GVRF FEB 2018 FOOD/SUPPLIES 400.00 400.00
2/22/2018 APIN Petty Cash-Cheryl Moose PCASH GVRF FEB 2018 SR GAMES ICE CREAM 90.86 90.86
3/31/2018 APIN MARCH Petty Cash March Petty Cash Senior Games 343.99 0.00 343.99
3/2/2018 GLGJ Petty cash GVRF PCash K Rans food Sr. Games 42.65 42.65

3/31/2018 APIN MARCH Petty Cash March Petty Cash Senior Games 9.85 0.00 9.85
2/22/2018 APIN Petty Cash-Cheryl Moose PCASH GVRF FEB 2018 SR GAMES RERESHMENTS 67.55 67.55

2/6/2018 APIN NUTHOUSE GRAPHICS Sr. Games results book graphic design 40.50 40.50

1/4/2018 APIN Quill.com Envelopes-SASG 183.83 183.83

TOTAL 21,852.70

GVR Foundation
General Ledger Detail by Acct

Fiscal Year: 4/1/2017 - 3/31/2018

33980 0.00

SENIOR GAMES

Control # Credit

5040 - Contracts
01172018 0.00

402837-2 0.00
5045 - Event Supplies

15257605 0.00

472539 0.00
6075220 0.00
PCASH JAN 0.00
PCASH JAN 0.00
1079 COSTCO 0.00
41235 0.00
003 0.00
003 0.00
003 0.00
003 0.00
003 0.00
23797 0.00

SEIM MEET 0.00

SR GAMES 0.00

SR GAMES 0.00

008 260.77
5058 - Credit Card Fees

5063 - Professional Fees
0.00

57249 0.00

5140 - Printing

009 0.00
5070 - Food & Catering

PCASH JAN 0.00
PCASH JAN 0.00

003 0.00
5135 - Postage

PCASH JAN 0.00

202 0.00
5165 - Office Supplies

3722398 0.00

SR GAMES EXPENSES Page 8



Post Date Name Memo Amount

10/25/2017 AZ Oncology AZ Oncology-culturefest 50.00
12/8/2017 Tomacacori SQ Culture Fest Booth 35.00
12/8/2017 Ambos Tours SQ Culture Fest Booth 35.00
12/21/2017 Nature Cure Clinic SQ Culture Fest Booth 35.00
1/4/2018 Angel Heart Pajama Proj SQ Culture Fest Booth 35.00
1/4/2018 Tri Tip SQ Culture Fest Booth 35.00
1/19/2018 Water of Life Record Culturefest Booth-Water of Life 35.00
1/30/2018 Accra SQ-CULTURE FEST SPONSOR (Kimberly Reynolds) 250.00
3/6/2018 Food & Root GV Found. Culturefest Vendor Receipts Food & Root 550.00
3/9/2018 Old Tucson Pmt from GVRCulturefest Sq Pmt Old Tucson 50.00

GVR TICKET SALES 2,580.00
3/13/2018 Brown Paper GVR Found. Deposit Culturefest Tickets Brown Paper 370.00

GGCF GREATER GREEN VALLEY COMMUNITY FOUNDATION RECEIVABLE 1,929.40

Income Total 5,989.40

1/4/2018 Engman Designs CultureFest Design 240.00

Expenses Total 240.00       

2018 Culturefest Revenue Less Direct Expenses 5,749.40 

GVR Foundation
General Ledger Detail Report

Report Period: 10/1/2017 - 3/31/2018

CULTUREFEST

1 - 4066 CULTUREFEST INCOME

CULTUREFEST Page 9



Electric 48,572.28$               
Telephones 13,012.14$               
Telephone Service 15,484.50$               
Water 8,941.68$                 

TOTAL EXPENSES 86,010.60$               

Total Square Feet 5,265                         

Cost Per Square Foot for 
15 months 16.34$                       

91

Total Cost of Office Space 
for 15 month period 1,486.60$                 

Foundation usage of office 
space 2.75 hours per day 
for 15 months - 
Foundation Ratio 34.38%

Total Foundation Cost 
for Office Space 511.02$                 

Annual Cost per square 
foot 13.07$                       

Expenses Jan 2017 - 
March 2018

GVR Foundation 
Administrative Office 
Square Feet (13' X 7') 

Administrative Facility Expense

Calculation of Shared Office Space Expense
GVR Foundation

OFFICE SPACE Page 10



EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
October 30, 2018 

 
Establish Ad Hoc Committee 

 

 

Recommendation: The Board of Directors create an Ad Hoc Committee to 

evaluate GVR facilities to ensure ease of access for GVR members with physical 

limitations, and appoint Suzan Curtin as chair. 

The committee would be charged with identifying possible deficiencies, and would 

be expected to present a report of their findings to the Board of Directors no later 

than February 28, 2019, with the expectation that the committee’s 

recommendations would be incorporated into the 2019 Center Assessment report. 



 
 

REQUEST FOR FUNDING 
FROM 

GVR FOUNDATION 
 

DATE:      
 
GRANT APPLICANT:           
 
ORGANIZATION TAX ID NUMBER:        
 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF REQUEST: $      
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE: START DATE        END DATE     
 
PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT:  
 Describe project in detail, including expected fund needs over time, identity and 
qualifications of personnel involved, cost of entire project, other sources of funding, and any 
other relevant information: 
 
             

             

              

              

              

ATTACH ITEMIZED BUDGET AND BUDGET JUSTIFICATION FORM FOR GRANT REQUEST 
 The budget should correspond to the nature of the project listed above. 
 
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL RELEVANT INFORMATION ABOUT THE ORGANIZATION’S HISTORY 
AND ACTIVITIES: 
 
             

             

             

              

SUBMITTED BY:  

              
NAME  (please print)     TITLE  (please print) 

       
SIGNATURE 
 
PHONE: (        )         EMAIL:        



 
 
 

ITEMIZED BUDGET AND BUDGET JUSTIFICATION 
FOR GRANT REQUEST 

 
GRANT APPLICANT:           

PROJECT TITLE:            

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:          

              

              

              

PROJECT SCHEDULE: START DATE        END DATE     

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED:  $       

  
BUDGET ITEMS   

   
SALARIES  $  

EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES  $ 

TRAVEL AND TRANSPORTATION  $ 

CONSULTANTS  $ 

  $ 

  $ 

  $ 

  $ 

TOTAL  $ 
 
  



 

 - 2 -  

 
BUDGET JUSTIFICATION 

 
The purpose of the budget justification is to enable GVR Foundation’s Board of Directors 
to understand the basis for and examine the reasonableness of the costs listed in the 
proposed budget. Sufficient explanation and detail should be provided for each budget 
category. 
 
BUDGET CATEGORIES: 

SALARIES 
For each employee, independent contractor, fellow, etc., who will take part in this 
project, list the person’s name, title, general duties or function as it relates to this project, 
and the average annual percentage of time included in this budget request. If this 
proposal is a request for partial support for a project, list the total percentage of time the 
person will work on the project, and the percentage of time for which funding from GVR 
Foundation is requested. Specify the nature and the amount, if any, of fringe benefits 
included in the salary listed for each person. 

1.              

2.              

3.              

4.              

5.                  

 
EQUIPMENT 
List any equipment purchases and explain how the equipment will be used in the 
proposed project. Describe the quantity and unit cost of each item. 

1.              

2.              

3.              

 
 
 



 

 - 3 -  

     
TRAVEL AND TRANSPORTATION 
Explain the purpose and list the applicable costs for all travel and transportation-related 
expenses for this project. For travel, list the number of trips; the individuals who will be 
traveling; the purpose for each trip or categories of trips; and the estimated duration and 
average cost per trip for each category of travel (e.g., attend conferences; 3 trips for 2 
days per trip; $1,000 per trip). For transportation, list the purpose of each item and the 
associated costs. 

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

 
CONSULTANTS 
For each consultant, explain how the consultant will further this project and list the 
consultant’s rate and the time involved (e.g., number of hours or days). To the extent 
possible, list each consultant by name and describe his/her qualifications. 

              

              

              

              

 
OTHER 
Explain all costs associated for other direct project costs and describe how they further 
the proposal (e.g., direct costs for postage, photocopying, supplies, etc.). 

              

              

              

              

              

 



EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
October 30, 2018 

 
 

Distribute Summary of Legal Opinion:  

Scope of President’s Authority 

 

 

Overview: 

In October, I presented a motion to obtain a legal opinion regarding the Scope of 

the President’s Authority and to publish a summary of that opinion for the benefit 

of GVR members and include it in the CPM.   

I rescinded the motion when it was determined that such legal opinion had already 

been obtained.  However, the Board did not vote on making the opinion public nor 

including it in the CPM. 

 

Recommendation: 

Direct the CEO to obtain a summary of the legal opinion entitled Scope of the 

President’s Authority (dated August 15, 2018). 

When the summary has been received and shared with the BOD, direct the Board 

Affairs Committee to prepare a statement for inclusion in the CPM and distribution 

to all GVR Members. 


	10302018 BOD Agenda.pdf
	10302018 Consent Calendar.pdf
	09252018 BOD Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	082018 Financials.pdf
	092018 Financials.pdf

	2019 Budget Plan B.pdf
	10172018104447-0001
	10172018104455-0001

	EXHIBIT - Calendar Postings for Closed Committee Meetings 10302018.pdf
	Shared Resource Revised Reconciliation Recalculation.pdf
	EXHIBIT - Establish Ad Hoc Committee 10302018.pdf
	MAP Grant Request.pdf
	Request for Funding.pdf
	Itemized Budged for Grant Request.pdf

	EXHIBIT - Scope of President's Authority 10302018.pdf

